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Tü the Board of Directors of
GSD Yatırım Bankası Anonim Şirketi;

\Ve have andited the accompanying financial statements of GSD Yatırım Bankası Anonim Şirketi
(“the Bank”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2015 and the
related statement of profit and Ioss and other comprehensive income. statement of changes in equitş
and statement of cash flows for the year then ended. anda summary of significant accounting policies
and otlıer explanatory notes.

A’fwıageıııL’ıu v responsibillıy for 11w fiııcuıcial statenems

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with international Financial Reporting Standards and for such intemal control as
management determines is necessaıy to enable preparation of fınancial statenıents tlıat are free from
material misstatement, whetlıer dııe tü fraud or error.

Aucliıors rexponsihihıı’

Our responsibiliiy k to express an opinion on these fınancial statements based on oıır audit. \Ve
conducted our audit in accordance with Intertiational Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that ve complv with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit tü obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the fınancial statements are free from material misstatement.

An andit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and diselosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment. including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the fınancial statements. whether due tü fraud or
error. in making those risk assessnıents, the auditor considcrs intemal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order tü design audit procedures thıat are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the elkctiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit alsa includes evaltiating the appropriateness of accounting
pohicies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by manaııement. as welI as
evaluating the overail presentation ofthıe fınancial statements.

We behleve that the audit evidence ve ilave obtained k suffıcient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

in our opinion, the financial statements present fairiy, in alI material respects, the financial position of
the Bank as at December 31, 2015, and its fınancial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with international Financial Reporting Standards.

Güney Bağımsız Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Müşavirlik Anonim Şirketi
A member fhm of Emst 8 Young Global Limited

lndcpcndent Auditors’ Report

Painer

August 15, 2016
Istanbul, Turkey



GSD Yatırım Bankası A.Ş.
Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2015
(Cıırrencv - Thoıısands of Turkish Lira (TL»

Noles 2015 2014

Asscts

Caslı and balances wiih Central Bank 15 1,543 709
Dıte from hanks 16 1,1 56 1,299
Trading securitles 17 31 1 962
lnvestment Securities 18 160 160

Avallabk for Sak Inı’estmen!s 160 160
Derivalive fınancial instruments 19 15 -

Loans and advances to customers 20 256,742 101.493
Tangible assets 21 100 61
Intangible asseis 22 112 106
Deferred lax assets 23 1,286 591
Other assets 23 44.076 4,028

Total assets 305,501 109,409

Liabilitics

Derivative financial instrurnents 19 1,376 -

Obligations under repurchase agreernent 17 220 -

Current accounts of ban cuslomers 25 166,074 7,1 16
Funds borrowed 26 32,700 5.360
Provisions 27 1,178 1,069
Iııcome taxes payable 14 706 315
Other liabilities 28 6.317 4,442

Total Iiabilities 208,571 18,302

Sharcholdcrs’ cquity

Share capital 29 50,000 50,000
Adjustment to share capital 29 2,686 2,7 13
Retained eamings 44,244 38,394

Total eguity 96,930 91,107

Total liabilitles and eguity 305,501 109,409

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fınancial statements.
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GSD Yatırım Bankası A.Ş.
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Currene, -Thousands oJTurkish Lira (TL))

Notes 2015 2014

Interest income
Interest income on loans and advances to custorners 7 19,197 13,315
Interest income on securitles 7 43 19
Interest income on deposlıs with banks and other financial institutions 7 3 502

Total interest income 19,543 13,836

Interest expense
Interest expense on funds borrowed and other money market deposits 8 1,780 (1,619)
Interest expense on current accounts of ban customers 8 2,835 (584)
Interest expense on other money market placements $ 26 (10)

Total interest expense (4,641) (2,213)

Net interest income 14,902 11,623

Fees and commission income 9 5,029 4,237
Fees and commission expense 9 (20!) (7!)
Net fee and commission income 4,828 4,166

Net trading gains/(boss) 10 (2,323) (214)
Other operating income 31 1 486

(2,012) 242

Operating income 17,718 16,03 1

Net irnpairment gam / (boss) on financial assets 11 (912) (1,704)
Personnel expenses 12 (4,856) (4,527)
Other operating expenses 13 (4,664) (3,743)
Profit before income tax 7,286 6,057

Income ıax — curent 13 (2.131) (1.263)
!ncome tax — defered 13 695 48

Net profit for the year 5,850 4,842

Other comprchensive income (27) -

Other comprehensive income for the year (27) -

Total comprehensive income for the year 5,823 4,842

The accompanying notes are an integral pad of these financial statements.
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GSD Yatırım Bankası A.Ş.
Siatemem of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Currencı’ —Thousands of Turkish Lira (TL))

Notes 2015 204

Cash flows from operating activities
Interest received 18,122 13,913
Interest paid (4,437) (2,196)
Fees and commissions received 5,029 4,237
Trading income (2,716) (107)
Recoveries of Ioans 20 1,091 306
Fees and commissions paid (201) (71)
Cash payments to employees (4,539) (4,068)
Vacation pay liability paid 27 (69) (2)
Employee termination benefıts paid 27 (25) (25)
Cash received from other operating activities 686 186
Cash paid for other operations (5,334) (3,579)
Income taxes paid (1.524) (1,646)

Cash flows from operating activities before changes in
operating asseis and liabilities 6,086 7,248

Changes in operating asseis and Iiabilities
Trading assets (65 1) (680)
Reserve deposits at Central Bank ofTurkish Republic 834 (194)
Loans and advances to customers (155,249) 16,413
Other assets (40,048) 772
Current account of oan customers 159,958 304
Other money market deposits 220 -

Funds borrowed 27,340 (23.153)
Other Iiabilities and provisions 1,984 297

Net cash used in operating activities (5,612) (6,241)

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of tangible assets (61) (24)
Proceeds from the sale of tangible assets and irnangible assets - -

Purchase of intangible assets (39) (65)

Net cash provided by / (used in) investing activities (100) (89)

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 374 918
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 Januaıy 30 1,312 394

Cash and cash eguivalents al 31 December 30 1,686 1,312

The accornpanying notes are an integral part ofthese financial statements.
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GSD Yatırım Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to the Financial Sİatements

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2015
(Currenev — Thousands of Turkish Lira (TL))

1. Corporate information

GSD Yatırım Bankası Anonim Şirketi (the “Bank’’) was registered on 22 December 1998 nt Turkish
Trade Registry Gazene, in aceordance with the decision number 98110962 taken by tlıe Board of
Ministers on 20 April 1998. Tlıe Bank was registered as an investment bank and commenced its
operations on 7 April 1999, after obtaining the necessary banking permissions from the Turkish
Undersecretariat of Treasuıy (the “Treasury”) and the Central Bank of Turkey (the “Central Bank”)
on 24 February 1999.

The registered offlce address of the Bank is Aydınevler Malı. Kaptan Rıfat Sk. No: 3 Küçükyalı
34854, Maltepe - Istanbul, Turkey.

The parent and ultirnate parent of the Bank is GSD Holding AŞ (“GSD Holding”) whose majority
shares are publiciy traded.

Nature of activities of the Bank

The Bank carries om its activities as an investmenı bank. The Banks corponte services mainiy
include corporate lending and trade fınance, la retail banking. tlıe Bank mainiy provides retail lending
products such as morigages, home equity, vehicle and consunıer loans to its customers. As a fon
deposit taking bank, tlıe Bank borrows funds from fınancial markets.

Operational activities of the Bank as stated at its Articles ofAssociation are as follows:

• Lending cash and non cash loans

• Providing collection and payment services. fund transfer and correspondent banking services

• Cheques and notes payable transactions

• Providing custody service

• Foreign exchange traıısactions

• Trading of capital market instmments, derivatives and money market instruments

• Intermedian’ senices in money markets

• Financial lease lransactions

As at 3! December 2015, tlıe Bank provides services through its head office. As at 31 December
2015, the number ofemployees of the Bank is 26 (2014: 26).

(6)



GSD Yatırım Bankası A.Ş.
Noles to the Fjnancial Statements (continued)

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2015
(Cıırreııcv — Thoıısands of Turkish Lira (TL))

2. Bass of preparation

2.1 Basis of presentalion of financial statemcnts

The accompanying financial statemenis have been prepared in accordance with international
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”s) as issued by the international Accounting Siandards Board
(“IASB”).

The financial statements of the Bank vere authorised for issue by the management on April 9,2015.
The General Assembiy and certain regulatory bodies have the power to amend the statutory financial
statements after issue.

The Bank maintains its books of account and prepares its financial statements in Turkish Lira. which
is the currencv of the primary economic environment in hjch the Bank operates, in accordance with
the Banking Acı based on accounting principles regulated by the “BRSA”, which refers to “Turkish
Accounting Standards” (“TAS”) and “Turkish Financial Reporting Standards (TFRS”) issued by the
Pubiic Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority and other decrees, notes and
explanations related to the accounting and financial reporting principles pubhished by the BRSA, and
the other relevanı rules and regulations regulated bv the Turkish Commercial Code and Turkish Tax
Legishation.

The accompanying flnancial staternents are based on the statutory records which are nınintained under
the historical cost convention, except for trading securities and derivatives which are measured at fair
value, with adjustments and reciassifıcations for the pıırposes of fair presentation in accordance with
IFRS. These fınancial statemenıs are presented in Turkish Lira since that is the currency in which the
majority of the Banks transactions are denominated.

The accounting policies hiave been consistenthy applied by the Bank and are consistent with those
used in previous year ended 31 December 2014.

2.2 Basis of measurement

The fınancial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the fohlowing:
• derivative fınanciah instrtırnenls are measured at fair vahııe
• financial instruments at fair value through profıt or loss are measured at [air value

2.3 Functionai and presentation currency

These fınancial statements are presented in TL, which is the Bank’s functional currency. Except as
otherwise indicated, financiah information presented in TL has been rounded to the nearest thousand.

The restatement for the changes in the general purchasing power of TL untih 31 December 2005 is
based on IAS 29 (“Financiah Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies”). IAS 29 requires that
fınanciah statements prepared in the currency of a hyperinflationary economy be stated in ternıs of the
measuring unu current at the balance sheet dale and the corresponding fıgures for previous year be
restated in the same terms.

IAS 29 describes characteristics that may indicate that an economy is hyperinflationaıy. However, it
concludes that it is a maUer of judgement when restatement of financial statements becomes
necessary. After experiencing hyperinflation in Turkey for many years. as a resuit of the new
econornic program, which was launched in late 2001, the three-year curnulative infiation rate dropped
below 100% in October 2004. Based on these considerations, restatement pursuant lo IAS 29 has been
apphied until 31 December 2005 and Turkey ceased to be hyperinflationary effective from 1 Januaıy
2006.

(7)



GSD Yatırım Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2015
(Curre nev - Thousands of Turkish Lira (TL))

2. Bask of preparation ‘conünued)

2.3 Functional and presentation curreney (conhinzwd)

Restatement of statement of fınancial position and statement of comprehensive income items throııgh
the use of a general price index and relevant conversion factors does not necessariiy mean that the
Bank conid realise or settle the same values of asseis and liabilities as indicated in the statement of
financial position. Similariy, it does not necessariiy mean that the Bank could return or settle the same
values of equity to its shareholders.

2.4 lise of estimates and judgcments

The preparation of the fınancial staternents in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make
judgemenıs. estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amoıınts of assets, Iiabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

Estimates and underlying assurnptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estirnate k revised and in any future periods
a ffected.

Information about signifıcant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying
accounting policies that have the most signifıcant effect on the amount recognised in the fınancial
statements are described in notes 4 and 5.

2.5 Going concern

The Bank’s management has made an assessment of the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern
and k satisfıed that the Bank has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future.
Funhermore. the managernent is not aware of any material uncertainties that mav cast signifıcant
doubt upon the Bank’s ability tü continue as a going concem. Therefore. the fınancial statements
continue tü be prepared on the going concern basis.

3. Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been app(ied constantly to alI periods presented in these
fınancial statements and have been applied consistentiy by the Bank.

3.1 Foreign currency transactions

The financial statements are presented in TL, which is the Bank’s functional and presentation
currency. The Bank determines its own funetional currency and items included in the financial
statements of eaclı entity are measured using that functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currency of the
operation at the spot exchange rate date of the transaction. Monetaıy assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign curencies at the repodinu date are retranslated into the functional currency at
the spot exchange rate date of the transaction.

(8)



GSD Yatırım Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2015
(Currenc;’ — Thousands if Turlüslı Lira (TL))

3. Signillcant accounting policies (conhinuL’d)

3.2 Foreign currency transactions (‘contüııwd)

The foreign curreney gam or Ioss on monetary iterns k the difference behveen amonised cost in the
functional cunency at the beginning of the period. adjusted for effective interest and payments dLıring
the period, and the amortised cost in foreign curreney transiated at the spot exchange rate at the end
of the period. Ali foreign currency differences are recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign currency translation rates used by the Bank are as foilows:

EUR/TL USD/TL
(fiili) (fiili)

31 Decernber2ol3 2.9365 2.1343
31 December 2014 2.8207 2.3189
31 December2ols 3.1776 2.9076

3.3 Interest

interest income and expense are recognised in the profıt or Ioss using the effective interest method.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments and
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or liability (or, where appropriate, a shorter
period) to the carrying amount of the financial asset or Iiability. When caiculating the effective
interest rate, the Bank estimates future cash flows considering ali contractual terrns of fınancial
instrurnent, but not future credit losses. The effective interest rate is established on initial recognition
of the fınanciai asset and hability and is not revised subsequently.

The caiculation of the effective interest rate includes au fees and points paid or received thaı are an
integral pan of the effective interest rate. Transaction costs inciude incrementai costs that are directly
attributabie to the acqııisition or issue of a fınancial asset or iiability.

interest income and expense presented in the statement ofcornprehıensive incorne statement inciude:

• the interest income and expense on flnanciai assets and liabilities at amortised cost on an effective
interest rate bask

• Ihe interest income on trading assets.

3.4 Fees and commission

Fees and commission income and expense that are integrai to the effective interest rate on a fınancial
asset or Iiability are included in the measurement of the effective interest rate.

Other fees and commission income. including account senicing fees. investment management fees,
sales coınmission and piacement fees are recognised as the reiated services are performed.

Fee for bank rransfers and other banking transaction senices are recorded as income when collected.

3.5 Net trading income

Net trading income comprises ali realised and unreahsed fair vaiııe changes in derivative financial
instrurnents.

16 Dividends

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the payments is estabiished.

3.7 Lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profıt or Ioss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease.

(9)



GSD Yatırım Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2015
(Cıırrcncı — Thousa,ıds of Türk/siz Lira (TL))

3. Significant accounting policies (conıhiited)

3.8 Income tax expense

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in
profıt or Ioss except to the extent that it relales to items recognised directly in equity or olher
comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax pavable on the taxable income for the year using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacled at İlie reporting date, and any adjustrnent to tax payable in respect of previons
years.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of ternporaıy differeııces between the carrving amounts ofassets
and Iiabiiities for fınancial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred
tax 15 measured al the tax rales that are expecled to be applied to the lemporary differences wiıen they
reverse, based on the laws Ihat have been enacted or substantively enacled by the repofling dale.
Defened lax assets and deferred tax Iiabilities are offsel ifthere Isa legaliy enforceable right tot offset
current tax Iiabililies against curent tax assets. and Ihey relate to income taxes ievied by the same
authority on the same taxabie entity.

A deferred lax asset is recognised for unused tax ioss, and deductibie temporaıy differences to the
extenl Ihat it k probable that future taxabie profııs wiil be available against which Ihey can be utilised.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each repofling date and are reduced to the extent İhat il is no
longer probable that the related tax benefit wiill be realised.

3.9 Financial assets and liabilitles

Recogniiioı

The Bank initialiy recognises cash and baiances with the Central Bank, due from banks, loans and
advances to custorners, current account of ban customers and funds borrowed on the dale at which
they are originated. Regular way purchases and sales of Fınanciai assets are recognised on the trade
date at which the Bank commits lo purchase or seli the assel. AlI ollıer ünanciai assets and liabilities
(including assets and habibities designated al fair value through profit or boss) are initialiy recognised
on the trade date al which the Bank becomes a pan to the contracluab provisions of the inslrurnent.

A financial asset or financial liabibity is initialiy measured at fair vaiue pbus (for an item not
subsequently measured at fair vabtıe through profil or ioss) transaction costs that are directiy
attributabie to its acquisition or issue.

Derecogniıion

The Bank derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the Fınanciai asset in a
transaction in which substantialby abi tbıe risks and rewards of ownership of the Fınancial asset are
transfered Any interest in transferred financial assets that 15 created or retained by the Bank is
recognised asa separate asset or liability.

The Bank derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelbed or expire.

(10)



GSD Yatırım Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2015
(Currenev — Thrjusands oJTurkis/ı Lira (TL))

3. Significant accounting policies (continıa’d)

3.9 Financial asscts and liabilities (cominııed}

Offteııiııg

Financial assets and liabilities are ofiset and the net amount presented in the statement of fınancial
position when, and only when, the Baak has a legal right to set off the recognised amounts and it
intends to senle on a net basis or to realise the asset and senle the liability simulianeously.

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only vhen permitted under IFRSs, or for gains and
losses arising Umm a group ofsimilar transactions such as in the Bank’s trading activity.

A,norğisecl cost neasureıııcııt

The amortised cost ofa financial asset or liability 15 the amount at which the fınancial asset or hiability
15 measured at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative
amoflisation using the effective interest method of any difference between the initial amount
recognised and the maturity amount, minus any reducılon for impairment.

[‘air ı’cdıw neasıırenent

Fair value k the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or liability seftled, between
knowledgeable, willing paılies in an arm’s length transaction on the measurement date.

When available, 11w Bank measures the fair value of an instrument using quoted prices in an active
market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available and represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

If a market for a financial instrument in not active, the Bank establishes fair value using a valuation
technique. Valuation techniques include net present value techniqııes, the discounted cash flow
method, coınparison to similar instruments for which market observable prices exist, and valuation
modeis.

Idc’nüficaıion and ı;ıeasurenwnt of inıpairmenf

At each reporting date. the Bank assesses whether there is objective evidence Ihat fınancial assets not
caried nt fair value through profit or loss are impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial asseis
15 (are) impaired when objective evidence demonstrates that a loss event has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset(s). and İhat the loss event has an impact on the future cash flows on the
asset(s) that can be estimated reliably.

The Bank considers evidence of impairment at both a specific asset and cohlective level. AlI
individually significant financial assets are assessed for specific impairment. AlI signifıcant assets
found not to be specifıcally impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been
incurred but not yet identifıed. Assets that are not individually signiflcant are then collectively
assessed for impairment by grouping together financial assets (carried at amonised cost) with similar
risk characıeristic.

Objective evidence that a fınancial asset or group of assets is impaired includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Bank about the following loss events:

• signiflcant financial difflculty of the issuer or obhigor;

• a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments by more
than 90 days;

the Bank granting to the borrower, for economic or legal reasons relating to the bonower’s
fınancial diffıculty, a concession that the lender would not othenvise consider;

it becoming probable that the borrower wilI enter bankruptcy or other fınancial reorganisation;

• the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of fınancial diffıculties; or
(Il)



GSD Yatırım Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2015
(Currcnc>’ — Th,usand.ç oJTurLLvh Lira (TL))

3. Significant accounting polieies (confiıııa’d

3.9 Financial asscts and liabihities (con!inıwd)

obsenable data indicating that there 15 a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows
from a group of financial assets since the initial recognhiion of those assets. although the decrease
cannot yel be identifled wiih the individual financial assets in the Bank, including:

• adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers; or

• national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in the Bank.

hfthere 15 objective evidence that an impairmeni loss on Ioans and advances carried at amortised cost
has been incurred, the arnount of the loss 15 measured as the difference between the asset’s carıying
amount and estimated recoverable arnount. The carrying arnount of the asset 15 reduced through use of
an allowance account. Losses are recognised in profit or loss and reflected in an ahlowance account
against loans and advances.

If. in ü subsequent period, the amount of Ihe impairrnent loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occuning after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvernent in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously recognised impairment loss 15 reversed by
adjusting the allowance account. Any subsequent reversal of impairment loss 15 recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income, to the extent that the carıying value of the asset does not e>ceed
its arnortised cost at the reversal date. The arnount of the reversal should not result in a canying
arnount of the financial asset that exceeds what the amortised cost would have been had the
irnpairrnent not been recognised at the date the impairrnent is reversed.

A write off is made when alI or part of a ban k deerned uncohlectible or in the case of debt
Forgiveness. Such loans are wrillen off after alI the necessary legal and regulatory procedures liave
been cornpleted and the amount of the loss has been determined. Write offs are charged against
previously established ahlowances and reduce the principal amount of a ban. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts written offare included in the income statement.

3.10 Cash and cash eqnivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include notes and coins on hand. unrestricted balances heid with central
banks and highlv liquid financial assets with original rnaturities of hess than three months, which are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in lheir fair vahııe. and are used by the Bank in the
managemenı of its short-term commitments.

Cash and cash equivalents are canied at amortised cost in the staternent of financial position.

3.11 Segment İnformation

Business segrnent isa component of the Bank thıat engages in business activities from whiclı the Bank
may earn revenues and incur expenses, whose operating results are regularhy reviewed by the Bank’s
chiefoperating decision makers to make decisions abotıt resources to be ahlocated to the segment and
assess its performance, and for which discrete financial available.
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3. Significant accounting policies (conhinıwd)

3.12 Trading assets and iiabilities

Trading assets and liabilities are those assets and iiabilities that the Bank acquires or incurs
principaliy for the purpose of seiling or repurchasing in the near term, or holds as pafl of a portfoiio
that is managed together for short-term profıt or position taking.

Trading assets and Iiabilities are initialiy recognised and subsequently measured at fair value in the
stateınent of flnanciai position, with transaction costs recognised in profit or Ioss. Ali changes in fair
value are recognised as part of net trading income in profit er Ioss. Trading assets and Iiabilities are
not reciassifled subsequent to their initial recognition.

3.13 Derivative fınanciai instruments

The Bank enİers into derivative instrument transactions ineluding forwards, swaps and options in the
foreign exchange and capital markets. Most of these derivative transactions are considered as
effective economic hedges under the Bank’s risk rnanagement policies; however since they do not
quaiify for hedge accounting under the specific provisions of IAS 39, thıey are treated as derivatives
heid for trading.

Derivative fınancial instruments are initiahiy recognised at fair value on the date which a derivalive
contract k entered into and subsequentiy remeasured at fair vaiue. Any gains or losses arising from
changes in fair vaiue on derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in proFıt
or ioss.

Fair vaiues are obtained from quoled market prices in active markets, inciuding recent market
transactions. to the extent pubhiciy available, and valuation techniques, including discounted cash
flow modeis and options pricing modeis as appropriate. Ali derivatives are carried as assets when fair
vaiue is positive and as Iiabilities when fair value is negative.

3.14 Duc from banks and ioans and advanccs to customcrs

Due from hanks and Ioans and advances to customers are non-derivative financiai assets with fixed er
determinable paymenıs that are not quoted in an active market and that the Bank does not intend lo
seli immediatelv or in the near term.

When the Bank k the hessor in a lease agreement that transfers substantiahiv ali of the risks and
rewards incidentah to ownership of an asset to the iessee, the arrangement 15 ciassifled as a finance
lease and a receivable equah to the net investment in the lease is recognised and presented within loans
and advances.

When the Bank purchases a financiah asset and simulıaneously enters into an agreement to resehi the
asset (or a substantiaily simihar asset) at a Fıxed price on a future date (reverse repo er stock
borrowing”), the arrangement k accounted for as a due from banks. and the underlying asset is not
recognised in the Bank’s financial statements.

Due from banks and loans and advances to customers are initially measured ot fair vaiue plus
incremental direct transaction costs, and subsequently measured nt their arnortised cost using the
effective interest method.

(13)
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3. Significant accounting policies (coııthnwd)

3.15 Tangible asscts

Recognition and neasureınenl

The costs of the tangible assets are restated for the effects of infiation to the end of 31 December
2005, Iess accumulated depreciation and impairrnent losses. Tangible assets acquired after 31
December 2005 is reflected at cost, Iess accumuiated depreciation and impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.

The gam or Ioss on disposal of an item of tangible assets is determined by comparing the proceeds
from disposal with the carıying amount of the item of tangible assets, and are recognised net within
other operating income in profit or Ioss.

Subseqııeııt cosis

The cost of replacing pafl of an item of tangible assets is recognised in the carıying amount of the
item if it is probable that the future economic beneflts ernbodied within the part wiil flow to the Bank
and its cost can be measured rehiabiy. The carıying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. The
costs of the day-to-day servicing of tangible assets are recognised in profıt or Ioss as incurred.

Dc’precialion

Depreciation is recognised in profıt or Ioss on a straight-Iine basis over the estimated useful lives of
each part of an item of tangible assets since this most cioseiy reflects the expected pattern of
consumption of the future economic benefıts embodied in the asset. Leased assets under fınance
leases are depreciated over the shorter of the hease term and their useful lives.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as fohhows:

Motor vehicles 5 years
Furniture and fıxtures 5—50 years
Leased assets shorter of 5 — 1 0 years and the lease term

Leasehıold improvements are depreciated ona straight-Iine method over a period of time of their lease
contract.

Depreciation methıods and useful lives are reassessed at each fınancial year-end and adjusted if
appropriate.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.16 Intangible assets

The costs of the intangible assets are restated for the effects of inflation to the end of 31 December
2005, Iess accumulated amortisation and irnpairment losses. Intangible assets acquired after 3!
December 2005 are reflected at cost, Iess acetırnulated amortisation and impairment losses.

intangible assets comprise purchased software.

Arnortisation is recognised in profıt or ioss ona straiglıt-iine bask over the estimated ııseful life of the
sofiware. from the date that it k available for use since this most cioseiy reflects the expected paflem
of consumption of the future economic benefıts embodied in the asset. The estimate useful lives of
software are four to fıfteen years.

Amortisation methods and useful lives are reassessed at each fınancial year-end and adjusted if
appropriate.

3.17 Assets heM for sale

Assets classifıed as heid for sale are measured at the iower of carrying vaine and fair value Iess costs
to seli.

3.18 Leases

The Bank as lessec

Leases in tenns of which the Bank assumes substantialiy ali the risks and rewards of ownership are
classifıed as fınance leases. Upon initial recognition the leased asset is measured at an amount equal
to iower of its fair vaiue and the present value of the minimum kase payments. Subsequent to initiai
recognition. the asset is accounted for in accordance with the accounting polic applicabie to that
asset.

Other ieases are operating leases and, the leased assets are not recognised in the BanWs statemenı of
fınancial position.

The Bank as lessor

Finance Icases

The Bank presenıs ieased assets as a receivable equai to the net investment in the lease. Finance
income k based on a paflern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the net investrnent
outstanding. Initial direct costs are included in the initial measurement of the fınance lease receivabie
and redLıce the amount of income recognised over the iease term.

3.19 Impairment of non-fınancial assets

The carrying amounts of the Bank’s non-fınancial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed
on each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an assel exceeds its recoverabie amount.
lmpairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

The recoverable amount ofan asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair
value less costs to seli. in assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
vaiue of money and the risks specifıc to the asset.
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3. Significant accounting policies (conıinıwd

3.19 lmpairment of non-financial asseis (continu’d)

An impainıent loss is reversed if rhere has been a change in the estimates used to deternine the
recoverable amount. An impaimıent loss 15 reversed oniy to the extent that the asset’s carıying
amount does not exceed the carıying amount that would have been determined. net of depreciation or
amortisation. ifno impairment loss had been recognised.

3.20 Deposits, current accounts of ban customers and funds borrowcd

The Bank is not entitled to collect deposits. Current accounts of ban customers and funds borrowed
are the BanVs sources ofdebt funding.

Current accounts of ban customers and funds borowed are initialiy measured at fair vabue plus
incremenıal direct transaclion cosis, and subsequently measured at their amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

3.21 Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Bank has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliabiy, and it is probable that an outflow of economic beneflts will
be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows ata pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time vaiııe of money and, where
appropriate, the risks speciFıc to the liability.

A provision for onerous contracts 15 recognised when the expected beneflts to be derived by the Bank
from a contract are lower than the unavoldable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The
provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract
and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is estabiished, the Bank
recognises 211v impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

3.22 Empboyee henefits

Defined Beıwflı Pkms
In accordance with existing social legislation in Turkey. the Bank is required to make lump-sum
termination indemnities to eaclı employee who has completed over one year of service with the Bank
and whose empboyment is terminated dııe to retirement or for reasons other than resignation or
misconduct.

Such defined benefit plan is unfunded since there is no funding requirement in Turkey. The cost of
providing beneflts under the defined benefit plan is detennined by independent actuaries annuahiy
using the projected unit credit method. Ali actuariah gains and bosses are recognized in the income
statement.

bn calculating the related liabihity to be recorded in the financial statements for these defıned benefit
pians, the Bank uses independent actuaries and also makes assumptions and estimations rehating to
the discount rate to be used, turnover of emphovees, future ehange in saharies/limits, etc. These
estimations which are disciosed in Note 27 are reviewed reguharly.

The Bank is alsa required to make a payment for the period of notice caicuhated over each service
year of the emphoyee whose emphoyment is terminated for reasons other than resignation or
misconducı. Totai benefit is cahcuhated in accordance with bAS No:19R. The Bank has no retirement
fund or foundation that the empboyees are the member of.
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3. Significant accounting policies (coninued)

3.22 Employec bendfiis (co,zıüııwd>

Defined Conıribmion Plans

The Bank pays contributions to the Social Security Institution of Turkey on a mandatory basis. The
Bank has no fuılıer payment obiigations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are
recognized as ernployee benefit expense when thev are due.

3.23 Fiduciary assets

Assets heid by the Rank in a Fıducianç agency or custodian capacity for its customers are not included
in the statement of ünancial position, since such iterns are not treated as assets of the Bank.

3.24 Related partles

For the purpose of ihis report, the shareholders and the ultimate shareholders of the Cornpany, GSD
Group ofcornpanies, members of the key management personnel of the Company or its parent and the
companies controhled by/associated with ali of the above are referred to as related partles.

A related pany is a person or entity that is related to the entity that is preparing its flnancial statements
(in this Standard referred to as the reporting entity).

(a) A person or a ciose member of that persons farniiy is related to a repoıting entity ifthat person:

(1) has control orjoint control over the reporting enıity;

(ii) has signiflcant influence over the reporting entity; or

(ili) Isa nıernber of the key management personnel ofthe reporting entity or of a parent of the
reporting entity.

(b) An entity 15 related to a reporting entity ifany of the following conditions applies:

(1) The entity and the reporting entity are ınembers of the same group (which means that
each parent. snbsidian and fellow subsidiary k related to the others).

(ii) One eniity is an associate or joint venture of the other entitv (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group ofwhich the other entit3 Isa member).

(ili) Roth entities arejoint ventures of the same third partv.

(Iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entiiy and the other entity k an associate of the
third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-empioyment benefit plan for the benefit of emploees of either the
reponing entity oran entity related to the reporting entiw. if the reporting entity is itseif
such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the reporting entity.

(vi) The entity is controhled orjointly controthed by a person identifled in (a).

(vii) A person identifıed in (a)(i) has signiflcant influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity). A related party
transacrion is a transfer of resotırces. sen’ices or obligations between a reporting entity
and a related party, regardless of whether a price is eharged.
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3. Signifıcant aecounting policies t’conıinııecl)

3.25 New standards, amendments and interpretations

The accounting po!icies adopted in preparation of the Fınancial staternents as at 31 December 2015 are
consistent with tlıose of the previous financial year, except for the adoption of new and amended
IFRS and IFRIC interpretations effective as of 1 Januan’ 2015. The effects of these standards and
interpretations on the Bank’s financial position and performance have been disclosed in the related
paragraphs.

i) The new standards, amendments and interpretations which are effective as at 1 Januar> 2015
are as folloıvs:

IAS 19 Defined Benefit Pians: Employee Contributions (Amendment)

JAS 19 requires an entity to consider contributions from ernployees or third parties when accounting
for defined benefit pians. The amendments clarify that, if the amount of the conıributions is
independenı of the number of years of service, an entiiy is permitted to recognise such contributions
as a reduction in the service cost in the period in which the service is rendered, instead of allocating
the conıributions to the periods of service. The amendment did not have an impact on the financial
staternenis of the Bank.

Annual Improvements to IAS/IFRSs

in December 2013, IASB issued the below amendrnents to the standards in relation to “Annual
improvements -2010—2012 Cycle” and “Annual Improvernents -20! 1—2013 Cycie.

Annual Improvements - 2010—2012 Cycie

IFRS 2 Shıare-based Payment:

Deflnitions relating to performance and service conditions which are vesting conditions are ciarifled.
The amendment k effective prospectively.

IFRS 3 Business Combinations

The amendment is appiied prospectiveI and ciarifles timi alI contingent consideration arrangernenis
ciassifled as iiabilities (or assets) arising from a business combination should be sııbsequentI
measured nt fair value through profit or loss whether or not they fail within the scope of !AS 39 (or
!FRS 9. as applicable).

IFRS 8 Operating Segments

The arnendments cIariI that: 1) An entity must disclose the judgements made by management in
appiying the aggregation criteria in IFRS 8, including a brief deseription of operating segments that
have been aggregated and the economic characteristics (e.g., sales and gross margins) used to assess
whelher the segments are ‘similar’. ii) The reconcihation of segment assets to totah assets is oniy
required to be disclosed if the reconciliation 15 reponed to the chief operating decision maker. The
amendrnents are effective retrospeciiveiy.

tAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and tAS 38 Intangible Assets

The amendment to tAS 16.35(a) and IAS 38.80(a) ciarifles that revaluation can be performed, as
fo 1 iows:
1) Adjust the gross carrying amount of the asset to market value or ii) determine the market value of
the carrying amount and adjust the gross carrying amount proportionately so that the resulting
carıying amount equais the market vaiue. The amendment is effective retrospectiveiy.
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3. Significant accounting policies (confinıwd)

IAS 24 Related Partv Disclosures

The arnendment elarifles that a management entitv — an entity that provides key managernent
personnel senices — is a related party subject to the related party disclosures. in addition, an entiiy
that uses a management entity is required to disclose the expenses incurred for management services.
The amendment is effective retrospectively.

Annual Improvements—2011—2013 Cyclc

IFRS 3 Business Combinations

The amendment ciarifles that: i) Joint arrangernents are outside the scope of IFRS 3. not just joint
ventures ii) The scope exception applies only 10 the accounting in the financiah staternents of the joint
arrangernent itseif. The arnendment is effective prospectively.

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

The podfoiio exception in IFRS 13 can be applied to financial assets, financial hlabilities and other
contracts within the scope of IAS 39 (or IFRS 9, as applicable). The amendrnent is effective
prospectively.

IAS 40 lnvestment Property

The amendment clarifıes Ihat IFRS 3, not the description of ancihlinıy services in IAS 40, is used to
deternıine if the transaction is the purchase of an asset or business combination. The amendment k
effective prospectively.

Above arnendments did not have a signiücant impact on the consolidated ünancial staternents of the
Bank.

ii) Standards issued but not yet effective and not carly adopted

Standards. inıerpreıations and amendrnents to existing standards that are issued but not yet effective
up to the date of issuance of the financial statements are as fohlows. The Bank wihil make the necessary
changes if not indicated othenvise, which wili be affecting the financial statements and disclosures.
when the new standards and interpretations become effective.

IFRS 11 Acquisition of an Interest in a Joint Operation (Amendment)

tERS ii IS amended to provide guidance on the accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint
operations in which the activity constituies a business. This amendment ciarifles that the acquirer of
an interest in a joint operation in which the activiıy constitutes ü business, as defined in IFRS 3
Business Combinations, to apply ali of the principles on business combinations accounting in IFRS 3
and other IFRSs except for those principles that conflict with the guidance in this IFRS. in addition,
the acquirer shall disclose the information required by IFRS 3 and other IFRSs for business
combinations, These amendments are to be applied prospectively for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2016. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments wihl not have an impact on the
financial position or performance of the Bank.
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3. Significant accounting policies (conti,ııwd)

IAS 16 and IAS 38 - Ciarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation
(Amendmcnts to IAS 16 and IAS 38)

The amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38. have prolıibited the ııse of revenue-based depreciation for
property. planı and equiprnent and signifıcantlv limiting the use of revenue-based amortization for
intangible assets. The arnendnıents are effective prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016. Earlier application is permitted. The amendınents wili not have an impact on the
financial position or perfomiance of the Bank.

[AS 16 Pruperty, Plant and Equipment and [AS 41 Agriculture (Amendment) — Bearer Plants

JAS 16 15 amended to provide guidance that bearer planıs, such as grape vines, rubber trees and oH
palms should be accounted for in the same ıvay as property, plant and equipment in IAS 16. Once a
bearer planı is mature, apart frorn bearing produce, its biological transfornıation k no longer
signiflcant in generating future economic benefıts. The oniy signifıcant future economic beııeflts it
generates come from the agricultural produce that it creates. Because their operation is similar to ıhat
of manufacturing, either the cost model or revaluation model should be applied. The produce growing
on bearer plants wiil remain within the scope of IAS 41, measured at fair value less costs to selI.
Entities are required to apply the amendments for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2016. Earlier application is permitted. The amendment is not applicable for the Bank and ıyi!! not
have an impact on the Fınancial position or performance of the Bank.

IAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial Statcmcnts (Amendments to IAS 27)

in August 2014. IASB issued an amendment to IAS 27 to restore the option to use the equity method
to account for investments in subsidiaries and associates in an entity’s separate financial statements,
Therefore. an entity must account for these investments either:
• At cost

in accordance with IFRS 9,
Or
• Using the equity method defıned in IAS 28

The entity must apply the same accounting for each categoıy of investments. The amendmenı 15
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 Januaıy 2016. The amendments must be appiied
retrospecılveiv. Eariy application k permitled and must be disclosed. The amendment 15 not
applicable for the Bank and will not have an impact on the fınancial position or performance of the
Bank.

tERS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or Contribution of Asseis behveen an lnvestor and its Associate or
Joint Vcnture (Amendments)

in April 2015, amendments issued to IFRS 10 and IAS 28, to address the acknowledged inconsistency
between the requirements in IFRS 10 and IAS 28 in dealing with the Ioss of control of ü subsidiary
that k contributed to an associate or ajoint venture. to clarify that an investor recognises a fulI gam or
loss on the sale or contribution of assets that constitute a business, as defined in IFRS 3, between an
investor and its associate or joint venture. The gam or Ioss resulting from the re-measurement at fair
value of an investment retained in a former subsidiaıy should be recognised only to the extent of
unrelated investors’ interests in that former subsidiaıy. An entity shali apply those amendments
prospectively to transactions occurring in annual periods beginning on or after 1 Januaıy 2016. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendment is not applicable for the Bank and wiil not have an impact
on the fınancial position orperformance of the Bank.
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3. Significant accounting policies coniüıued

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28: Investrncnt Entities: Applying the Consolidation Execption
(Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28)

in February 2015, amendments issued to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28. to address the issues that
have arisen in applying the investment entities exception under IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements. The amendments are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after 1 ianuary 2016.
Earlier application k permitted. The amendment is not applicable for the Bank and wiil not have an
impact on the financial position or performance of the Hank.

JAS 1: Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to tAS 1)

in Februan’ 2015, amendments issued to IAS 1. Those amendments include narrow-focus
irnprovernenİs in the following five areas: Maleriality. Disaggregation and subtolals. Noles structure,
Disclosure of accounting policies, Presentation of items of other cornprehensive income (00) arising
from equitv accounted investments. The amendments am applicable for annual periods beginning on
or after

1 January 2016. Earlier application is permitted. These amendments are not expected have signifıcant
impact on ilie notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Bank.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs - 2012-2014 Cycle

in September 2014, IASB issued, Annual improvenıents to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle. The document
sets out five amendments to four slandards, excluding those standards İhat are consequentially
amended, and the related Basis for Conclusions. The standards affected and the subjects of the
amendments are:

IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Heid for Sale and Discontinued Operations — clarifıes that changes
in metlıods of disposal (through sale or distribution to owners) would not be considered a new
plan ofdisposal. rather it Isa continuation of the original plan

IFRS 7 Financial lnstruments: Disciosures — clarifıes that i) the assessment of servicing
contracts İhat includes a fee for the continuing involvement of financial assets in accordance
with IFRS 7: ii) the offsetting disclosure requirements do not apply to condensed interim
financial statements, unless such disclosures provide a signiflcant ııpdate to the information
reported in ilie most recent annual report
[AS 19 Employee Beneflts — ciarifles that market depth of high quality corporate bonds is
assessed based on the currency in which the obligation is denominated. rather than the countn’
where ilie obligation k located
IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting — clarifıes that the required interim disclosures must either
be in the interim ünancial statemenis or incorporated by cross-reference between the interim
financial staiernents and wherever they are included within the interim financial report
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 Januaıy 2016, with
earlier application permined. . The Bank is in the process of assessing the impact of the
amendments on fınancial position or performance of the Bank.
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3. Signifıcant accounting policies (confinued)

IFRS 15 Rcvenue from Contracts with Custonıers

in May 2014. the IASB issued IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The new five-step
model in the standard provides the recognition and measurement requirements of revenue. The
standard applies to revenue from contracts with customers and provides a model for the sale of some
non-fınancial assets that are not an output of the entit s ordinan’ activities (e.g., the sale of propertv,
plant and equipment or intangibles). IFRS 15 original effective date was t Januaıy 2017. However, in
September 2015, IASB decided to defer the effective date to reporting periods beginning on or after 1
Januan’ 2018, with early adoption permitted. Entitles will transition to the new standard following
either a fuli retrospective approach or ü modifled retrospective approach. The modifled retrospective
approach would allow the standard to be applied beginning with the current period, with no
restaternent of the comparative periods, but additional disclosures are required. The Bank is in the
process ofassessing the impact of the standard on financial position or performance of the Bank.

IFRS 9 Financial Instrumcnts - Final standard (2013)

In JuIy 2014 the IASB published the final version of IFRS 9 Financial lnstruments. The finah version
of IFRS 9 brings together the classiflcation and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting
phases of the IASB’s project to replace IAS 39 Financial lnstruments: Recognition and Measurement.
IFRS 9 is built on a hogical, single classifıcation and measıırement approach for fınancial assets tlıat
reflects the business model in which they are managed and their cash flow characteristics. Built ııpon
this is a fonvard-looking expected eredit loss model that wilI result in more timely recognition of ban
losses and is a single model that is applicable to alI fınancial instruments subject to inıpairment
accounting. in addition, IFRS 9 addresses the so-called ‘own credit’ issue, whereby banks and others
book gains throııgh profıt or loss asa result of the value of their own debt falling dııe to a decrease in
credit wortliiness when they have elected to measure that debt at fair value. The Standard also
includes an improved hedge accounting model to berter link the economics of risk management withı
its accounting treatment. IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 Januaıy 2018.
However. the Standard is available for early apphication. In addition. the own credit changes can be
early apphied in isolation without othensise changing the accounting for fınancial instmments. The
Bank is in the process of assessing the impact of the sıandard on financial position or performance of
the Bank.

IFRS 16 Leases

in January 2016, the IASB has pubhished a new standard. IFRS 16 ‘Leases. The new standard brings
most leases on-balance sheet for lessees under a single model. ehiminating the distinction between
operating and fınance leases. Lessor accounting however remains largely unchanged and the
distinction between operating and fınance leases is retained. IFRS 16 supersedes RS 17 ‘Leases’ and
related interpretations and is effective for periods beginning on or after Januaıy 1. 2019, whh earhier
adoption permitted if IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ has also been applied. The
Bank k in the process of assessing the impact of the standard on financial position or performance of
the Bank.
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3. Significant accounting policies (confhıuc’d)

IAS 12 Income Taxcs: Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses (Arnendments)

in January 2016, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes. The amendrnents clariŞ’ 1mw
to account for deferred tax assets related to debt instrurnents measured at fair value The amendments
clarift the requirernents on recognition of deferred tax assets for unreahised losses, to address
diversity in practice. These amendments are to be retrospectively applied for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2017 with earlier application permitted. However. on initial appiication of the
amendment. the change in the opening equity of the earhiest comparative period may be recognised in
opening retained eamings (or in another component of equitv. as appropriate), without aliocating the
change between opening retained earnings and othıer components of equits’. if the Company/Group
applies this rehief, it shall disclose Ihat fact. The amendrnent are not applicable for the Bank and wiil
not have an impact on the financial position or performance of the Bank.

IAS 7 Stalement of Cash Flows (Amendmcnts)

in January 2016, the IASB issued amendrnents to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows. The amendments
are intended to clarify IAS 7 to improve information provided to users of financial statements about
an entity’s financing activities. The improvements to disciosures require companies to provide
information about changes in their financing Iiabilities. These arnendments are to be applied for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 with earlier apphication permitted. When the
Company/Group first applies those amendments, it 15 not required to provide comparative information
for preceding periods. The amendment are not applicable for the Bank and wihl not have an impact on
the financial position or performance of the Bank.

4. Financial risk management

a) Introduction and overview

The Bank has exposure to the following risks from fınancial instruments:

• credit risk

• hiquidity risk

• market risks

• operational risks

Thıis note presents information about the Bank’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Banks
objectives. pohicies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Bank’s management of
capitai.

Risk ıııaııagenzellfiamewo*

The Bank’s risk approach is to achieve sound and sustainable low risk profile on basis. through the
identification, the measurement and the monitoring of alI types of risks inherent in ilie nature of the
business activities. The main principle of the Bank is to manage the credit risk effectively and to
eliminate the other types of risk by not carrying positions.

in the course of its normal operations, the Bank k exposed to a number of risks such as credit risk,
hquidity risk, market risk and operational risk. Bank’s risk pohcy can be summarised as:

• veIi managing the credit risk through a high standardised credit risk management

• eliminating hiquidity risk

minimising market risk
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4. Financial risk management (coııfinued)

la accordance with the Bank’s general risk management strategy: the Bank aims 10 eliminate and
hedge its currency. inlerest rate and maturiiy positions that might create iiquidity or market risk to the
Bank. Additionaliy. in order to minimise the market risk. marketable securities portfoiio is limited
proponional 10 the total assets size.

Board of Directors is the highest authority to set ali risk management guidelines. and it is responsible
for ensuring that the Bank impiements al! necessary risk management techniques in compliance with
the reiated regulaton’ requirements in Turkey.

AlI risk ieveis are set and approved by the Board of Directors on a regular basis. and it is announced
to the organization.

The Bank manages its exposure to ali types of risks through the Asset and Liability Comrniitee,
comprising members of senior management, anda representative of main sharehoider.

in summaıy. in order not to be exposed to any liquidity. interest rate, market and foreign currenoy
risk, the Bank aiways keeps its funding structure in line with the asset structure (in terms of currency,
maturity and interest rate) and hedges its positions through various derivative transactions. in addition
to that, the Bank does not take any specıılative positions on cıırrency, interest rate and maturity that
might create any liquidity or market risk to the Bank.

b) Crcdit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Bank if a customer or counterparty fails to meet its
contractuai obhgations, and arises principally from the Bank’s loans and advances to customers and
other banks.

The most impodant step in managing this risk is the initial decision whether or not to extend credit.

The Bank manages its corporate portfolio as per following principles;

There are risk Iimits, set by the Board of Directors. describing relevant credit limits such as single
borrower limit, group exposure limit, credit approval authorities and their approval limits.

The Bank seeks to manage its credit risk exposure through diversiflcation of lending activilies to
avoid undue concentrations of risks with individua!s or groups of customers in specific locations or
businesses. It aiso obtains securities shen appropriate.

Manageıııeııı of crediı risk

Throughout the ban extension process, the Bank management evaluates the fırm’s operating
performance. fınancial structure, abilıity of debt repayment currently and continuance of debt payment
ability in the future and the morality of the fırm’s shareholders. The Bank has generated an intenial
rating system for the determination of flrms’ ratings and credit assessments. The “Credit Rating
process is the analysis of objective criteria fonned upon the evaluation of flrm’s ünancial
performance, infonnation gathered throughout intelligence process, relations of the flnn with other
financial institutions, the firms production technoiogy. the position of the fırm in its sector, the firm’s
competitiveness and customer and supplier ponfolio of the fırm. The flrms are rated between A - H.

lnten’al Rating Deseription

90— 100 A Exceilent
80—89 8 Verygood
70—79 C Good
60 —69 D Average
50—59 E Fair
40 —49 F Cioseiy foliow up
25—39 G Doubtfui
0—24 H Uncollectible
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4. Financiai risk managemcnt (cominned)

b) Credit risk co,ııimwd)

Risk follow-up department performs the monitoring of the morality records of the flrrn and the binek
list of central bank. eontrois the distribution of concentration limiis with respect to sector, geography
and credit type and control5 the collateral structure of the loans.

Exposnrc to credu risk

Loans and advances
Duc from banks to customers

At 31 December Notes 2015 2014 2015 2014

Carrying amount 16,20 1,156 1,299 256,742 101,493

Individually impaired
- Non-performing financial assets - - 16,531 17,881
Gross amount - - 16,531 17,881
Allowance for impairment 20 - (10,569) (11,059)
Carrying amount - - 5,962 6,822

Past due but not impaired - - - 30
Carrying amount - - - 30

Neither past due nor impaired 1,156 1,299 254,7 15 96,562
Gross amount 1,156 1,299 254,715 96,562
Allowance for collective impairment 20 - - (3,935) (1,921)
Carrying amount 1,156 1,299 250,780 94,641

Carrving amount (amortised cost) 16, 20 1,156 1,299 256,742 10 1,493

Jnıpafred loons tıtıci adı’cnıces

individualiy impaired Ioans are Ioans and advances for which the Bank determines thal there k
objective evidence of impairment and it does not expect to collect alI principal and interest due
according to the contractual ternıs of the ban. These Ioans are graded F to H in the Bank’s inter-nal
credit risk grading system.

Past duL’ but not inıpaired ioans

Past due but not impaired loans are those for which contracrual interest or principal payments are past
due, but the Bank believes that impairment is not appropriate on the basis of the level of security /
collateral available and / or the stage of collection ofamounts owed to the Bank.
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4. Financial risk management (coııtüıııed,J

b) Credit risk (‘conünned)

Exposıırc tü credit risk (‘continued)

Alloııances for impainnen!

The Bank establishes an allowance for impairment losses that represents its estimate of incured
losses in its ban portfolio.

The Bank establishes an allowance for impairment losses on assets carried at amortised cost that
represents its estimate of incurred losses in its ban porifollo. The main components of this allowance
are a specific boss component that rebates lo individually signifıcant exposures. and a collective ban
Ioss ablowance established for groups of assets in respect of bosses ıhat have been incurred but not
have not been identifled on Ioans that are considered individuabiy insigniflcant as vebI as individualby
significant exposures that vere subject lo individual assessmenl for impairment bul not found to be
individualiy impaired.

JVriıe—offpo!icv

The Bank writes off a ban balance and any related abbowances for iınpairment bosses, when Bank
determines that the loans are uncolbectibbe. This determination is made after considering information
such as the occurrence of signifıcant changes in borrower’s financial position such ıhat the borower
can no longer pay the obbigation, or that proceeds from colbateral wilI not sufflcient to pay back the
entire exposure.

Set out below is an anaiysis of the gross and net (of albowances for impairmenı) amounts of
individualiy impaired assets by risk grade.

Loans and adyances ta customcrs
2015 Cross Net

Grade E Individııally impaired - -

Grade G Individualiy impaired - -

Grade bi Individually impaired 16.531 5,962

Total 16,S31 5,962

Loans and advances to customers
2014 Gross Net

Grade F Individualiy impaired - -

Grade G Individualiy impaired - -

Grade Il : Individually impaired 17,881 6,822

Total 17,881 6,822

Collateral policv

The Bank holds coblateral against boans and advances lo cuslomers in the form of moıtgage interests
over property, other registered securities over assets, and guarantees. Estimates of fair value are based
on the value of collateral assessed at the time of borrowing, and generally are not updated except
when a ban is individualby assessed as impaired. Collateral generaliy is not held over due from banks,
except when securities are heid as part of reverse repurchase and securities borrowing activity.
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4. Financial risk management (conıinıwd)

I) Crcdit risk (conıinued)

Colla/ercıl polin conıinued)

The breakdown of perfonting and under ciose follow-up caslı and non-cash Ioans by type of
collateral k as follows:

2015 2014

Secured Ioans 696,005 493,687
- Secured by rnortgages 34,275 1,499
- Secured by cash collateral 4,997 5,863
- Other collateral (pledge on assets. coşorate and personal guaranıees,
prornissoıy notes) 656,733 486,325
Unsecured Ioans 67,805 56,779

Total performing Ioans 763,810 550,466

Segıncut concenıration

The Bank monitors concentrations of credit risk by sector and by geographic location. An anaiysis of
concentrations of credit risk from due frorn banks and Ioans and advances to custorners at the
reporting date k shown below

Loans and advances to
Duc from hanks customers

2015 2014 2015 2014

Finance 1,156 1,299 203,026 88.739
Production - - 9,186 2,192
Consiruction - - 10.504 2,998
Other - - 3 1,750 2,663

Corporate Ioans 1,156 1,299 254,466 96,592

Consumer Ioans - - 249 -

Non-performing Ioans - - 16,53 1 17,88!
Provision for ban losses - - (14,504) (12,980)

Total 1,156 1,299 256,742 101,493
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4. Financial risk management (conihıved)

b) Crcdit risk (conıinued)

Segment concentration of non-cash Ioans is as follows:

2015 2014

Mining 270.510 267,084
Electrical, gas and natural resources 96,790 44,075
Finance 52,358 48,533
Prodııction 27,768 24,462
Construction 24,888 984
Service 7.070 24,845
Retail

- 4,136
Other 29,711 39,755

Total 509,095 453,874

Concenırafion risk b,’ locanon

Loans and advanccs
Duc from banks to customers

Noıcs 2015 2014 2015 2014

Turkey 16,20 1,156 1.299 256,742 101.493

1,156 1,299 256,742 101,493

Trading assefs inclndüıg deriı’aıiı’efinaııcial insırınnenis

An anaiysis of the credit quality of the maximtım eredit exposure is as follows:

Notes 2015 2014

Governrnent bonds and treasury bilis
- Rated BB - (trading portfolio) 17 3 1 1 962

Derivative assets:
- ank and i’ınancial instituiion counterpanies 19 15 -

Fair valuc and carning amount 326 962
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4. Financial risk management r’conıinued)

e) Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Bank wilI encounter difflculty in meeting obligations associated with
its financial liabilities that are senled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

Liquidity risk is a substantial risk in the Turkish marker, which exhibits signiflcant volatility.

Managcnıcnı of liqıddüv risk

in order to manage this risk, the Bank measures and manages its cash flow commitmenrs on a daily
basis, and maintains liquid assets. which itjudges suffıcient to nıeet its commitments.

The calculanon method used to measure the banks compliance with the liquidity limit is set by
Banking Regulatory and Supervision Agency (‘BRSA”). Currentiy, İhis calculation is performed on a
bank oniy basis, in accordance with the “Regulation on calculation of Bank’s liquidity coverage
ratio”. published in Offıcial Gazette no. 28948. dated Mareh 21, 2014, requires the banks to rneet 40%
Iiquidity raiio of foreign currency assets/liabiiities and 60% Iiquidity ratio of total assets/liabilities
based on arithmetic average computations on a weekly and monthly basis effective from 1 January
2015. The Bank’s liquidity ratios in 2015 and 2014 are as foliows:

Current Period
Foreign

currency Total

2015 average 6.45 1.54
2014 average 103.26 8.68

Mu/miii’ cınalı’sis forfincuicial İiabilities

The table on the next page anaiyses fınancial liabilities of the Bank into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at statement of financial position date to contractual maturity date.

(29)



GSD Yatırım Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2015
(Currencı’ - Thoıısands vj Turktçh Lira (TL)>

4. Financial risk managemeni (coııtinued}

c) Liquidity risk (conıinıwd)

Afaturitı’ ana!ysis forfinancial liabilhtles t’coııtinued}
Gro,, Iorc

Car,ying nominal tes lh,n 1-3 3 münih, 1-5 Ihan 5
2015 Note ,mounI ouIfln, Demnnd mc münih monihç 1.1 1 ‘tat ‘can ycan

A’ı,ıı.ilirı valiye hahılılıes
Cuenl accounls of ban cıjsloıners 25 166074 66.135 874 107,872 57689 - - -

Funds horrowed 26 32700 32.890 - 26.535 - 6,355 - -

198,774 199.325 874 133,407 57,689 6,355 - -

t)t’flOUi iL’ /iImnL idil ifl.s•lnhiiii-ilis

- Oulflow /9 1,376 50.703 - 1 50,703 - . - -

-lnflow 19 (15) (138.737) - (148,757) - - -

1,361 1,946 - 1.946 - - - -

100,135 201,171 874 136,353 57,689 6,355 - -

Crnss %l,ırc
Carning nominal Lrss iban 1-3 3 manih 1-5 hanS

2014 ,Vote Amooni onifluiş. Demand Oiw münih monih, (mı 1 ,ear vc,n sean

N,,i,—cIe my niye Iı,ıhı/,i,v

Curreni accounls ofinan çnnlnrncrs 25 1,116 7.185 342 1,411 3.374 8,958
Fıjnds borrowcd 26 5.360 5.363 52 5.311 . . -

12,376 82,548 394 6.722 s.474 1,958 —

Ikn rai ıL’ fr’ WILIUI NIOfliflJ,,

- Ouİflorr 19 - . -

- lı,flow 1’) - - - -

82,476 12,538 394 6,722 3,473 8,958 —

d) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as interest rate, equity prices, foreign
exchange rates and credit spreads wili affect the Bank’s income or the vaine of its holdings of
financial instruments.

The Board of Directors of the Bank determines the risk limits for primary risks carried by the Bank
and periodically revises tlıese Iimits. For the purpose of hedging market risk. the Bank primariiy aiıns
to balance the foreign currency position, collateralise the loans and manage liquidity.

The market risk arising from trading ponfolio is monitored, measured and reported using
Standardised Approach to the legal legislation. The monthly market risk report and the weekly
currency risk reports prepared using Standardised Approach are reponed to BRSA. The Bank’s valtıe
at market risks as al 31 December 2015 and 2014 calculated as per the statutory fınancial statements
prepared for BRSA reporting purposes within the scope of “Regulation on Measurement and
Assessment of Capital Adequacv Ratios of Banks” published in Offlcial Gazette no. 28337 dated 28
June 2012. are as follows:

2015 2014
Average Highest Lowest Average Highest Loıwest

Interest rate risk 1 1 - 1 3 -

Equity price risk - - - - - -

Curency risk 121 259 - 74 322 -

Total value-at-risk ı,539 3,238 - 942 4,038 -
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4. Financial risk managemeni ftonünued)

d) Market risk (‘conıimwd)

Currency risk

The Bank takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations in the prevailing foreign curency exchange
rates on its fınanciah position and cash flows. Foreign currency risk indicates the possibihity of the
potential losses that the Bank is subject to due to the exchange rate movements in the market. The
Bank does not prefer to can-s’ foreign currency risk and hohds foreign currency asset and liability items
togetlıer with derivatives in balance against the foreign currency risk.

The Bank manages foreign currency risk by weekly Asset and Liability Committee meetings,
comprising rnembers of senior management of the Bank and through lirnits on the positioııs which can
be taken by the Bank’s treasury and securities İrading divisions.

The concentrations of assets, liabilities and offstatement of fınancial position itenıs are as follows:

2015 Luro USD Otlıer Tolal

Cash and balances with the Central Bank - 1,279 - 1.279
Duefrornbanks 157 961 6 1,124
Loans and advances to customerst’) 6,445 3,209 - 9.654
Fundsborrowed (6,191) - - (6,191)
Other liabilities<’” (221) (130,074) - (130,295)

Net balance sheet position 190 (124,625) 6 (124,429)

Net off-batanee sbeet position
- Derivative fınancial assets - 137,093 - 137,093
- Derivative financial Iiabilities - (11,630) - (11,630)

Net position 190 838 6 1,034

2014 Euro USD Other Total

Cash and balances with the Central Bank - 696 - 696
Due from banks 46 1,237 6 1,289
Loans and advances to customers - 820 - 820
Funds borowed - - - -

Other Iiabilities1”> - (2.495) - (2.495)

Net balance sheet position 46 258 6 310

Net off-balance sheet position
- Derivative fınancial assets - - - -

- Derivative fınancial liabilities - - - -

Net position 46 258 6 310

(‘) Fowign currncv nduxd loans amonizing İn TL 9,654 (Decznıher 31,2013 TL 820) am ıncinded in ilie muns and advances in ctıslomers

Il ineludes TL. 130,295 (December 31, 2014 TL 2,495) cıırrenl cuslomer accounls
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4. Financial risk managemeni (‘continuedj

d) Market risk (conıinued)

Cıırreııcı’ risk (conıi,ııwd)

Scnsiüvin; analvsis

A 10 percenl weakening of TL against the foreign currencies at 31 December 2015 and
2014 would have increased equity and proFıt or Ioss by the amounts shown below. This anaiysis
assumes that alI other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed
on the same basis for 2014.

2015 2014
Eguityt” Profit or Ioss Eguity<” Profit or Ioss

Euro 19 19 5 5
USD 84 84 26 26
Other currencies 1 1 - -

Total 104 104 31 31

Equity effect also includes proFıt or Ioss eflect of 10% devaluation of TL against related
currencies.

Inıcresı rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates vilI affect the value of
financial instruments and cash flows. The Bank 15 exposed to interest rate risk as a result of
mismatches or gaps in the amounts of assets and Iiabilities and off balance sheet instrumenls that
mature or reprice in a giyen period. The Bank manages this risk by matching the repricing of assets
and liabilities through risk managernent strategies.

A substantial majority of the Bank’s assets and Iiabilities reprice within three months. Accordingly,
there is a limited exposure to interest rate risk.
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4. Financial risk management (conlinued)

d) Market risk (conhinued}

Juteresı rale risk (conıinıwd}

Exposıırc’ lo in(L’n’s( rcıte risk

The principal risk to which portfolios are exposed is Ihe risk of Ioss from fluctuations in the future
cash flows or fair values of fınancial instrument beeause of a change in market irnerest rates. Interest
rate risk is managed principaliy through monitoring interest rate gaps and by having pre-approved
Iimits for repricing bands. The ALCO is the monitoring body for compliance with these himits and is
assisted by Risk Management Department of the Bank in üs day-to-day monitoring activities. A
summaıy of the Bank’s interest rate gap position on portfolios is as follows:

Non
Up to 1 1—3 3—12 1—5 Syears interest

2015 month months montlıs years and ayer hearing Total

Asscts
Cash and balunces ‘.ith the Central Bank 1.533 - - - . - 1.543
Duefrombanks . - 1.156 1.156
Trading assets 15 311 . . - 160 486
Leans and advanccs (0 cuslomers’’ 210.623 24.673 17.1M 2.162 93 2.027 256.712
Other asseis . - . - - 35.571 45.574
Total assets 212.181 24.984 17,164 2.162 93 48,917 305,501

Liabilitles
Cunent accuunts of ban customers 107.775 58.13 1 . 168 166.074
Other money market deposits 220 . . . - 220
Funds horroued 26.508 - 6.192 . - . 32.700
Other liabilities - . . - 106.507 106.507
Total Iiabilitjes 133,503 58,131 6,192 - . 106,675 305.501

Balance sheet interest sensitivity gap 77,678 (33,147) 10,972 2,162 93 (57.758) -

( ) mc ludes non—pcrfnrniing gana aıııouııting TL. 16,531 and al IDWaUCC ror loaıı losses aıııounl lig TL 0,569 TL

Non
Upto 1 1—3 3—12 1—5 Syears interest

2014 month nıonths montlıs ycars and oyer bearing Total

Assets
Cash and balances nitlı the Central llank 696 - - - 13 709
Duc from banks - . . - 1.299 1,299

Trading assets . . 962 - . 160 1.122
Loans and advances 10 cusıomers’” 88.165 7.509 658 - 5.161 101.493
Other assets - - . - . 4.786 4,786
Total assets 88.861 7,509 1,620 - - 11.419 109,409

Liabilities
Current accounts of kian cusıoıners 1.408 3.426 1.911 - - 341 7.116
Other money market dcposits - . . .

Funds borrowed 5.308 . . - 52 5.360
Other Iiabilitics - . 96.933 96.933
Tahıl liahilities 6.716 3,426 1,941 . - 97,326 109,409

Balance sheet interest sensitivity gap 82,145 4,083 (321) . . (85,907) -

t’) lncludes ııon-perfcınning bana aıııounbıng TL 17,881 and abbovancı for oan bosses aınotııııing TL 11,059 TL.
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4. Financial risk management fcontüıııedj

d) Market risk (ço,ztiıııed

hiicresı Rate Risk Arisiı?gfro,,ı Banking Accoıınis as ofDecember 31, 2015 (conthıııed):

Applicd Shock Cains/Equity—
Currency (+İ— x base points) Cains/ Losses tosscs/Eguity

1 TL 500 (1.053) (%105)

(400) 908 %0.91
2 Furo 200 83 %0.08

(200) (86) (%0.00)

3 USD 200 172 %0.01
(200) (175) (%0.01)

Total (Negative Shock) 647 %0.64
Total (Positive Shock) (198) %(079)

Sımıı;ıaıy ofaı’erage itilerest rates

As at 3! December 2015 and 2014, the summaıy of average interest rates for differenl assets and
liabilitles are as follows:

2015 2014
Euro USD TL Euro USD TL

Assets
Cash and balances with the Central Bank
Due from banks
Trading assets - - 10.57 - - 8.75
Loans and advances to customers 6.50 5.55 16.02 - 5.03 12.27

Liabilities
Current accounts of ban customers 1.50 2,39 13.75 - 2.83 9.32
Fundsborrowed 3.25 - 12 - - 11.17

e) Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect boss arising from a wide variety of causes associated
with the Bank’s processes. personnel, teclınology and infrastructure, and from extemal factors other
than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulaton’ requirements
and generaliv accepted standards of corporate behaviour. Operational risks arise [tom ali of the
Banks operations and are faced by ali business entities.

The operational risk items in the Bank are determined in accordance with the defınition of operational
risk by considering the whole processes. products and departments. The control areas are set for
operational risks within the Bank and al! operational risks are foliowed by assigning the risks to these
control areas. in this context. appropriate monitoring methodology k developed for each control area
that covers alI operational risks and control frequencies are determined.

(34)



GSD Yatırım Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to the Financial Statements (eontinued)

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2015
(Currenn’ — Thousands of Turkish Lira (TL))

4. Financial risk management (conıinucd}

e) Operational risk (conıinued)

The Bank calculated the value at operational risk in accordance with the “Compııtation of Value of
Operational Risk” of the circular, “Regulation Regarding Measurement and Assessment of Capital
Adequacy Ratios of Banks” published in the Offlcial Gazette dated 28 June 2012, using gross profıt
of the Iastthree years, 2013, 2014 and 2015 (Basic Indicator Approach). The amount calculated as TL
27.763 as at 31 December 2015 (2014: TL 25,042) represents dıe operational risk that the Bank may
expose and the amount of minimum capital requirement to eliminate this risk.

(3 Capital managemcut

BRSA. the regulatoş body of the Turkish banking industry, sets and monitors capital requirements
for the Bank. in implementing current capital requirements, BRSA requires the banks to maintain a
prescribed ratio of minimum 8% of total capital to total risk-weighted assets.

The Bank is regıılatory capital is anaiysed into two tiers:

• ter 1 capital, capital k composed of the total amount of paid up capital, legal, voluntary and
extra reserves. profits for the period after tax provisions and proflts for previons years. The total
amount of banks’ losses for the period and losses for previous years is taken into account as a
deduction item, in the calculation of Tier 1 capital.

• Tier 2 capital, is composed of the total arnount of general provisions for credits, fıxed assets
revaluation fund, revaluation of available-for-sale fınancial assets and eqııity investments,
subordinated Ioans received, free reserves set aside for contingencies and the fund for increase in
the value of securities.

Banking operations are categorised as either trading book ur banking book. and risk-weighted assets
are determined according to specifıed requirements that seek to reflect the varying leveis of risk
attached to assets and off-balance sheet exposures. Operational risk capital requirenıent is calculated
using Basic Indicator Approach and included in the capital adequacy calculations.

The Bank’s pohicy k to nıaintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business.

The Bank and its individualiy regulated operations have complied with externally imposed capital
requirements tlıroughout the period.

There have been no material changes in the Bank’s management of capital during the period.

The Bank’s capital position at 31 December 2015 and 2014 is as follows:

2015 2014

Tier 1 capital 96,03 1 90,61 7
Tier 2 capital 99.966 92,53 8
Deductions fronı capital

- -

Total regulatory capital 99,966 92,538

Risk-weighted assets 576,750 350,321
Value at market risk 850 2,350
Operational risk 27,763 25,042

Capital ratios
Total regulatory capital expressed as a percentage of total risk
weighted assets, value at market risk and operational risk 1 6.5 1 24.68
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5. Use of estimates and judgements

Management decides to the development, selection and disclosure of the Bank’s erilical accounting
policies and estimates. and the application of these policies and estimates.

These disclosures supplement the commentaiy on financial risk managemenl (see note 4).

Key sources of estimation uncertainiş

ıl llowanccs for erecilı losses

Assets accounted for al amortised cost are evaluated for impairment on a basis described in
accounting policy in Note 3.

The specific counterpany component of the total allowances for impairment applies to fınancial assets
evalualed individualiy for impairmenı and is based upon management’s best estimate of the present
value of the cash flows that are expected to be received. in estimating these cash flows, management
makes judgernents about a counterparty’s fınancial situation and İlie net reaiisable value of any
underlying collateral. Each impaired asset is assessed on its merits, and İhe workout strategy and
estimate of cash flows considered recoverable are independentiy approved by the Credit Risk
Function.

Collectively assessed impairment allowances cover credit losses inherent in portfolios of ioans and
advances when there is objective lo suggest that they contain impaired Ioans and advances, but the
individual impaired items cannot yet be identifıed.

Deıerıniningjdr vahıes

The determination of fair value for fınancial assets and Iiabiiities for which there is no observabie
market price requires the use of vaiııation İechniques as described in accounting policy 3.9. For
fınancial instruments that trade infrequently and Iıave Iittle price İransparency, fair vaiue is Iess
objective. and requires varying degrees ofjudgement depending liqııidity, concentration, uncertainty
of market factors, pricing assumptions and otlıer risks affecting the specifıc instrument. See aiso
“Valuation of fınancial instruments” below.

Cri(ical accounting judgements in applying the Bank’s aceonnhing policies

Set out below is a comparison by category of carrying amounts and fair values of the Rank’s major
fınancial insİruments that are carried in the fınanciai statements at other than fair vaiues.

Carrying value Fair valuc
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2015 2014 2015 2014

Financial assets 258,058 102,952 254.123 101,131
Deposiis with hanks 1.156 1.299 1.156 1.299
Availahle-for-sale fınancial asseis 160 160 160 160
Laans and receivahles 256.712 101.493 252.807 99.572

Fjnancjal Iiabilities 198,774 12,376 199,026 12.376
Deposiis from hanks - - -

Cusıomcrs dcposits 166.074 7,116 166.259 7.116
Funds hommed 32.700 5.360 32.767 5.360

1 Goverınenı honds aınounlıııg 10 TL 311 Iıavc nal heen considcrcd in fair valııu calculaııon. (Dcccıııber 31,2013 TL 962).
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5. Use of estimates and judgements (conıüııwdj

Criiical accountingjudgements made in applying the Bank’s accounhing poiicies include (continued):

Vahiatioşı offinanckd hısınmwııts <‘continıa’d,>

The Bank’s accounting policy on fair value measuremenis is discussed in accounting policy 3.9.

The Bank measures fair values using the foilowing fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance
of ilie inputs used in making the measurements.

Level 1: Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for identical instrurnent.

Level 2: Valuation techniques based on obsenable inputs. either directly (Le.. as prices) Dr indirectly
(le.. derived from prices). This category includes instruments using valuation techniques where ali
signiFıcant inpııts are directly or indirectly observable from market data.

Level 3: Valuation techniques using signiflcant unobsen’abie inputs. This category includes alt
instruments where the valuation lechnique includes inputs not based on obsenabie dala and the
unobsenable inputs have a signiflcant effeci on the instwment’s valuation.

Fair values of fınancial assets and financial liabilities that are traded in active markeis are based on
quoted market prices or dealer price quotations. For ali other financial instrurnents, the Bank
determines fair values using valuation techniques.

Valuatlon techniques inelude net present value and discounted cash flow models. Assumptions and
inputs used in valuation techniques include risk-free and benchmark interest rates. The objective of
valuation techniques is to arrive al a fair valııe determination tiıat reflects the price of the fınancial
instrument al the reporting dale that would liave been determined by market participants acting at
arms lengih.

The Bank uses widely recognised valuation models for determining the fair value of common and
more simple fınancial instruments, like fonvards and currency swaps ihat use only observable market
data and require litIle managementjudgement and estimation. Obsen’able prices and model inpuls are
usually available in the market for listed debt securities. Avaiiability of observable market prices and
model inputs reduces the need for managernent judgement and estimation and alsa reduces the
uncertainty associated wiih determination of fair values. Availability of observable market prices and
inputs varies depending on the products and markets and is prone 10 changes based on specifıc events
and general conditions in the fınancial markets.
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5. Use of estimates and judgements (conhi,ıued)

Criıical accountingjudgernents made in applying the Bank’s accounting policies include (continued):

Valuaıion ofjhıanckd iıstrunıents Wontinned)

This table below anaiyses financial instruments measured at fair value al the end of the reporüng
period, by ilie level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value rneasurernent k categorised:

2015 Nole Levcl 1 Levcl 2 Level 3 Total

Assets
TreasuıyBonds 17 311 - - 311
Derivative fınancial instruments 19 - 15 - 15

311 15 - 326

Liabilities
Derivative ünancial instruments /9 - 1.376 - 1,376

- 1,376 - 1,376

2014 Level 1 Levy! 2 Levcl 3 Total

Ass ets
Treasury Bonds 17 962 - - 962
Derivative financial insiruments 19 - - - -

962 - - 962

Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments 19 - - - -

Critical accounting judgcments in applying the Bank’s accounting policies (conıinued}

Financial asse! and liahilüı’ ciassification

The Bank’s accounıing policies provide scope for asseis and Iiabilities to be designaied at inception
into different accounting categories in certain circumsiances:

in cIassif.ing Fınancial assets and liabilitles as ırading”, the Bank has determined that it meets
the description oftrading assets and liabilitles set out in accounting policy 3 above.

Details of the Bank’s elassification of fınancial asseis and Iiabilities are giyen in note 6 below.
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6. Financial asscts and Iiabilities

Accounting ciassificalion and fair valucs

The determination of fair values of fınancial assets and fınancial liabilities 15 based on quoted market
prices or dealer price quotations for financial instruments traded in active markets or valuation
techniques. However, the Bank expects no signifıcant difference between the fair value and carıying
value of the fınancial instruments since Iheir maturities are short-terrn.

The table below sets out the Bank’s ciassification of each class of fınancial assets and Iiabilities and
their fair values.

Other lnı,ıI
Loans and anıı,rıiscd carning

,Voıes Trading rcccival,Ics cost amonnı Fair value

2(115
Cash and hüces wiıh Ccntral Bank 15 - 1.543 - 543 1.533
Doefromhanks /6 - 1.156 - 1.156 1.156
Tradingasscts 17 311 - - 311 311
Dcrivaıivc ünancial insırumcnıs 19 15 - — 15 15
Loans and adyances 10 cuslomcrs 20 - 256.742 - 256,742 252.807

326 259.441 - 259,767 255.832

Ocrivative fınancial insırumcnts 19 1.376 - - 1,376 1,376
Currenı accounts of oan cuswmcrs 25 - - 166,074 166,074 166.259
Funds horrowcd 26 - - 32.700 32.700 32.767

-
- 198.774 200,150 2(10,4(12

Oıhcr Tnıal
Loans and amortiscd carning

.\oıes Trading reccivahlcs cost ıımount Fair valuc

2(114
Caslı and halances viıh Ccnıral Rank 15 - 709 - 709 799
Duc fronı hanks /6 - 1.299 - 1299 1.299
Trading aSSCLS 17 962 . 962 962
Dcrivaıivc Onancial insırumcnls 19 - - - -

Loans and advanccs (ü cuslon,crs 20 - 101.393 - 101.493 99,572

962 103.501 - 104.363 102.542

Dcrivaıivc fınancial instrumcnts /9 - - - - -

Currcnt accounts of ban cusıomcrs 25 — - 7.1 16 7.1 16 7.1 16
Funds bonowcd 26 - - 5,360 5.360 5.360

.
- 12,476 12,476 12,376

Interest income

2015 2014

Loans and receivables 9,497 13,315
Securitles 43 19
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 3 502

Total 19,543 13,836

7.
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8. Interest expense

9.

10.

2015 2014

Monev market interest expenses (1,780) (1,6 19)
Customer deposiis (2,835) (584)
Funds borrowed and deposits from other hanks (26) (10)

Total (4,641) (2,213)

Net fec and commission income

2015 2014

Fce and commission income
Fee and cornrnjssjon income from non-cash Ioans 4.852 4,095
Fee on banking senices 1 1 1 1 10
Other 66 32

Total fee and commission income 5,029 4,237

Fce and commission expense
Fee and commisson expense on banks 162 42
Other 39 29

Total fee and commission expense 201 71

Net fee and commission income 4,828 4,166

Net trading gain/(Ioss)

2015 2014

Derivalive financial instruments (3,564) (107)
Foreign exchange gainsİ(loss).net 1.241 (137)

(2,323) (244)
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11. Net impairment gam / (Ioss) on fınancial assets

12.

13.

2015 2014

Provisions for ban osses and other receivables 2,618 2,278
Reversal of prior year provisions (individually impaired Ioans) (1,094) (306)
Income from sales of propertles (370) -

Reversal of prior year provisions (bonus premlum) (242) -

Reversal of prioryear provisions (collectively impaired Ioans) - (268)

912 1,704

Personnel cxpenscs

2015 2014

Wages and salaries 3.661 3,392
Social security prerniums 322 272
Employee bonus provision 257 242
Provision for vacation pay Iiability 69 2
Provision for employee tenniııaıion beneflts 60 247
Olher personnel expenses 487 372

4,856 4,527

Other operating cxpenses

2015 2014

Utilities expense 1,698 1,355
Operating lease expenses 994 766
Financial operating fee 423 369
Vehicle expenses 340 285
Online data expenses 303 377
Auditing and consulting expenses 248 21
Subscription and membership fees 48 69
Other 610 311

4,664 3,743
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14. Ineome tax

The Bank 15 subject to taxation in aceordance with the lax procedures and the legislalion effective in
Tıırkey.

As at 31 December 2015, corporate income İax is 20% (2014: 20%) on the statutoıy corporate incorne
tax base, which is determined by modifying accounting income for certain exclusions and allowances
for tax purposes. There is also a wiıhholding tax Ievied al a certain rate on the dividends paid and is
accrııed only at the time of such payments. Some of the deductlon rates inclııded in the 15111 and 30111

articles of the Law no. 5520 on the Corporate Tax, has been redefined according ta the cabinet
decision numbered 2006/10731, whiclı has been announced al Trade Registry Gazette of 23 JuIy
2006-26237. in Ihis context. withholding lax rate on dividend payments wlıich are made to the
cornpanies except those are settled in Turkey or generate income in Turkey via a business or a regular
agent has been increased 10 35% from 10%.

Under the Turkish taxation system. tax losses can be carried forward to be offset against future
taxable income for up 10 five years. Tax losses cannot be carried back ta ofTset proflts from previous
years.

in Turkey, there is no procedure for a final and definitive agreement on lax assessments. Companies
ille their tax returns within four months following the close of the accounting year 10 whiciı they
relate. Tax returns are open for five years from the beginning of the year that follows the dale of fıling
during which time the tax authorities have the right to audit tax returns, and the related accounting
records on which ıhey are based, and may issue re-assessrnents based on Iheir flndings.

in Turkey, the transfer pricing provisions have been stated under the Article 13 of Corporate Tax Law
with the heading of “disguised profıt distribution via transfer pricing”. The General Communiqud on
disguised profit distribution via Transfer Pricing. dated 18 November 2007 sets deiails about
i mpl ementation.

if a ıaxpayer enters into transactions regarding sale or purchase of goods and services with related
parıies. where the prices are not set in accordance with arm’s lengıh principle, then related proflts are
considered ta be distributed in a disguised manner througlı transfer pricing. Suclı disguised profit
distributions through transfer pricing are not accepted as tax deductible for corporale income tax
purposes.

As al 3! December 2015 and 2014, prepaid income taxes are netled off with the current ıax Iiability as
stated below

2015 2014

Income tax liability 2,13 1 1,263
Prepaid income tax (1,425) (948)

Income taıes payable 706 315

Income tax recognised in the income statement

The components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 are:

2015 2014

Current tax expcnse
Current year 2,131 1,263
Deferred tax income / (expense)
Origination and reversal oftemporary differences (695) (48)

Tatal income tax eıpense 1,436 1,215
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14. Income tax (conıhıued,)

Reconciliation of effective tax nte

Reconciliation between tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by the statutoıy income tax
rate oftlıe Bank for the years ended 3! December 2015 and 2011 is as follows:

2015 2014

Profit before income tax 7,286 6,057
Taxes on income per statutory tax rate 1,457 1,211
Tax effect ofdisallowable expenses 34 5
Tax effect of exernpt items (2) (1)
Tax effect of assets Iıeld for sale (53) —

Total income tax expense 1,436 1,2 15

Cash and balances witli Central Bank

2015 2014

Cash on hand - -

Cash and balances wiih Central Bank ofTıırkish Republic 530 13
Reserve deposits nt Central Bank ofTıırkislı Repubiic 1.013 696

1,543 709

ln accordance with the “Communiqu Regarding the Reserve Requirernenıs no. 2013/15, the bank is
required to maintain reserves in Central Bank for TL and foreign currency liabilities. The reserve
requirements can be maintained as TL, USD, EUR and standard gold. Central Bank started paying
interest on reserve balances held in USD starting from May 2015 and held in TL starting from
November 20 1 4.

The reserve rales For TL iiabilities vary between 5% and 11.5% for TL deposits and other liabilities
according to their matıırities as of3l December 2015 (31 December 2014: 5% and 11.5% for al! TL
liabilities). The resen’e rates for foreign curreney liabilities vary between 5% and 25% for deposit and
other foreign currency iiabiiities according to their nıaturities as of 31 December 2015 (31 December
2014:6% and 13% for ali foreign currency Iiabiiities).

15.
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16. Duc from banks

17.

18.

19. Derivative fınancial instruments

in the ordinarv course of business. the Bank enters into various types of transacıjons that involve
derivative financial instruments. A derivative financial instrument k a fınancial contract between two
parties where payments are dependent upon movements in price in one or more underiying fınancial
instrurnenıs. reference rates or indices. Derivative fınancial instruments include fonvards.

Derivative financial asseis
Fonvards

Derivative financial iiabilities
Forwards

2015

15

1,3 76

2014

2015 2014

Piacements wiih other banks 1,156 1,299
- Demand 1, 156 1,299
- Time

- —

1,156 1,299

Trading securitics

2015 2013
Fair Carrying Fair Carn’ing

valuc value valuc valuc

Debt and other instrumcnts
Governrnent bonds - 31 1 - 962

- 311 - 962

Ohligations under repurchase agrecment

2015 2014

Obligations under repurehase agreement 220 -

220 -

Investment securitles

December3l, December3l,
2015 2014

Available for sale securiiies 160 160

160 160
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20. Loans and advances lo customen

Decemher 31. 2015 December 31. 2014
Amount Effeclivc inleresi mit Amount LlTertive inlerest role

Turkish Foreign Turkish Foreign
Lira (*) Curreney Lira (9 Currencv

Corporate Ioans 251.466 1900%-12S0% 6 50%-5.50 96,592 1908%-ll.20% 600°.428%
Consumcr Ioans 239 12.48%-1260% - . -

Relail loons - - - . -

Small busincss Ioans . - . — — —

Total performiog Ioaos 254.715 96.592

Non-pcrflwmin Ioans 16.53! 17,881
Lcss Speciflc resen tür inıpaimwnt (10.569) (11,059)
Less Portfoho rcscnc for ımparmcnt Ç3,935) (1,921)

Tolal 256,742 101,493

(9 E Tecil’ e nicresi rales of overdrat) loons are ille luded The above dlslril,ai i on Itar been ınade hased en the business hoca.

2015 2014

Corporate. commercial and small business loans 254,466 96,592
- Loans giyen to fınance sector 203,026 88,479
- Export loans - -

- Foreign loans - -

- Discount notes - -

-Other 51,440 8,113
Consuıner loans(*) 249 -

Perfurming Ioans 254,715 96,592

Non-perforıning Ioans 16,531 17,881

Tolal Ioans and advances to customers 271,246 114,473

Provision for impairment (14,504) (12,980)
- Specific allowance for impairment (10,569) (1 1,059)
. Collective allowance for impairmenl (3,935) (1.921)

Net Ioans and advances to customers 256,742 101,493
t • Coır.priscs of moneage, asıioıııoiie and persenal bana

The above distribution has been made based on the account codes.
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20. Loans and advanccs ta customers (conlüııwd)

Non-performing Ioans represent impaired Ioans and receivables on which interest is not being accrued
and loans overdııe generaliy for more than 90 days for which interest is suspended.

SmaII
December3l,2015 Corporate Business Consumer Total

Neither past due nor impaired 254,466 - 249 254,715
Past dııe not impaired - - -

!ndividııally impaired 16.531 - - 16,531
Total ross 270,997 - 249 271,246

Less: allowance for individually impaired Ioans (10,569) - - (10,569)
Less: allowance for collectively impaired loans (3,935) - - (3.935)
Total Allowance for impairment (14,504) - - (14,504)

Total net 256,493 - 249 256,742

SmalI
Decemher 31, 2014 Corporate Business Consumer Total

Neither past due nor impaired 96,562 - - 96,562
Past due not impaired<” 30 - - 30
Individualiy impaired 17.881 - - 17,881
Total Gross 1 14.473 - - 1 14.473

Less: allowance for individually impaired Ioans (1 1,059) - - (11,059)
Less: allowance for collectively impaired Ioans (1.921) - - (1.92!)
Total Allowance for impairment (12.980) - - (12.980)

Total net 101,493 - 101,493
( Pası <lue not iınpaı[L’d iosns inci nde aiso kian cusioıne,s not pasi <lue however ston’ iored c loseiy hy the Bank

A reconciliation of the allowance for individualiy impaired Ioans is as follows;

December3l,2015 Total December3l,2014 Total

At January 1 1 1,059 At January 1 9,282
Charge for the year 604 Charge for the year 2.083
Sales ofnon-performing Ioans (NPL) - Sales ofnon-perforrning Ioans (NPL) -

Recoveries (1.094) Recoveries (306)
Amounts written off - Amounts written off -

Reclassiflcation frorn other !iabilities - Rec!assiflcation from other liabilitles -

and provisions, net of reeoveries and provisions, net of recoverles

At December3l 10,569 At December3l 11,059
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20. Loans and advances to customers (conıinıwd)

Movements in the provision for impairment:

2015 2014

Atianuaı-v 1 12,980 11,276
Reciassification from other liabilitles and provisions,
net of recoveries -

Provision for impairment 2,618 2,278
Recoveries (1,094) (574)
Provision net recoveries 1,524 1,704
Loans sold and wriflen offduring the year -

At December3l 14,504 12,980

Aging analysis of pasl due but not impaired Ioans per class of financial instrurnents k as follows:

Less tlıan More than
December 31, 2015 30 days 31-60 days 61-90 days 91 days Total
Loans and receivables

Corporate loans 254,166 . - 16,53 1 270.997
Consumer laans 249 - - - 219
Sina/t busüıess kans - - - - —

Retaif muns — — — — —

Total 254,715 - - 16,531 271,246

Less than More than
December 31, 2014 30 days 31-60 days 61-90 days 91 days Total
Loans and receivables

Corporafe /oans 96,562 30 - 17,881 114,473
Consumer /0<015 — — — — —

Sina/t business loa,ıs — — — — —

Rafa/t loans — — — — —

Total 96,562 30 - 17,881 114,473
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21. Tangiblc asscls

Furniture
Motor and Leased Lcaschold

vehiclcs fixturcs assets improvements Total

Cost
Balanceat 1 January 2014 - 414 263 - 677
Acquisitions - 24 - - 24
Disposals - (3) - - (3)
Balance al 31 December 2014 - 435 263 - 698

Balance at 1 January 2015 - 435 263 - 698
Acquisitions - 61 - - 61
Disposals - (4) - - (4)
Balance at 31 December 2015 - 492 263 - 755

Depreciation
Balanceat 1 Januan’ 2014 - 362 262 - 624
Depreciation for the year - 15 1 - 16
Disposals - (3) - - (3)
Balance al 31 December 2014 - 374 263 - 637

Balance at 1 Januan’ 2015 - 374 263 - 637
Depreciation for the year - 23 - - 23
Disposais - (5) - - (5)
Balance nt 31 December 2015 - 392 263 - 655

Carrying amounls
Balance atI Janııary 2014 - 52 1 - 53
Balance at 31 December 2014 - 61 - - 61
Balance at 31 December 201 5 - 100 - - 1 00

There vere no capitalised borrowing costs related to the acquisition of tangible assets during the year
(2014: None).
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22. İntangiblc asscts

Softwarc

Cost
Balance at 1 Janııaıy 2014 900
Acqııisitions 65
Disposais -

Balance at 31 Decembcr 2014 965

Balance at 1 Januarv 2015 965
Acquisitions 39
Disposais

-

Balance at 31 December 2015 1,004

Amortisation
Balance at 1 ianuary 2014 831
Amonisation for the year 28
Disposals

-

Balance at 31 Deccmber 2014 859

Balance al 1 ianuaıy 2015 859
Arnortisalion for the year 33
Disposais

-

Balance nt 31 December 2015 892

Carrying amounls
Balance atI Januarv 2014 69
Balance at 31 December 2014 106
Balance at 3 1 Deceınber 2015 112
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23. Deferred taı asseis and Iiabilities

Deferred tax assets and Iiabilities are auributable to the following:

2015 2014
Assets Liabilitles Net Assets Liabilities Net

Allowances on loans and advances 10
787 - 787 384 - 384customcrs

Derivative linancial instruments 275 (3) 272 - -

Empluyee termination henefıts 127 - 127 106 - 106
Vacation pay Iiability 55 - 55 57 - 57
Bonus accrual 51 - 51 48 - 48
Depreciation mctlıodologv diftcrcnccs on

. (5) ‘5) - (4i 4langible asseis and intangible assets ‘
‘

OLber — (1) (1) — — —

1.295 (9) 1,286 595 (4) 591

Movements in temporary differences during the year

Balance at Recognised in Balance at
1 January profıt or Ioss 31 December

2015
Allowances on Ioans and advances to customers 384 403 787
Derivative fınancial instruments - 272 272
Reserve for ernployee severance indernnity 106 21 127
Vacation pay liability 57 (2) 55
Bonus accrual 48 3 51
Depreciation methodology differences on tangible
assets and intangible assets (4) (1) (5)
Other — (1) (1)

591 695 1,286

2014
Allowances on Ioans and advances to cııstomers 399 (15) 384
Reserve for ernplovee severance indemnitv 73 33 106
Vacation pay Iiability 46 Il 57
Bonus accrual 44 4 48
Derivative financial instruments (16) 16 -

Depreciarion methodology differences on tangible
assets and intangible asseis (3) (1) (4)
Olher - - -

543 48 591
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24. Other asscls

2015 2014

Other miscellaneous receivables(*) 38,0 10 —

Transitory accounts 5,287 3,925
Assets heid for sale 660 -

Prepaid expenses 89 83
Receivables from group companles 30 20

Total 44,076 4,028

(9OLher miscellaneous receivables. amounting io TL 38.010. cunsisls of a properıy valuc uhich is execuled [rum a non—
perfurming ban customer. The flank \von the lender daied Augusl Il. 2015 for pledged propertv viıh ıbe [ce of TL
48.1)10 and TL 10.000 is deducted from pledge amount regarding to (hc ban, As the legal procees is in progress. ıhe

prupefly 5 e\pccıed to be transferred after the compleıion of legal process and olüet of iLe oan receivahle.

25. Current accounts of ban customers

26.

Bascd on original maturilies.

2015 2014

Corporate cusİomers 166,074 7,116
- Denıand 874 311
- Time 165,2 00 6,775

166,074 7,116

Funds borrowed

2015(*)

£ffective intcrcst nde
Turkish Foreign

Amount Lira curreney

Short-term
Fixed interest 32,700 12% 3.25%
Variable interest - - -

Mediumllong-term
Fixed interest - - -

Variable interest - - -

Total 32,700
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26. Funds borrowed (continued)

Vacation pay Iiability

2014(*)
Effective interest rate

Turkish Foreign
Lira currejçy_

in accordance wiih existing social legislation in Turke . the Bank is required to rnake payments to
employees uhose empioymeat 15 terminated for any reason for iheir vested unused ‘acation days.
Such paments are calculated on the bask of the salary of the empIoee at the date of termination.
Vacatioıı pay Iiabilitv is the total undiscounted Iiability of vested unused vacation days of the
employees as nt 31 December 2015 and 2014.

For the years ended 31 December, movements in the vacation pay liabiiity are as follows:

2015 2014

At 1 Januarv 287 230
Increase during the year 57 59
Paid (69) (2)

At31 December 275 287

27.

Amount

Short-term
Fixed interest 5,360 11% -

Variable interest - - -

Medlum/long-ternı
Fixed interest - . -

Variable interest - -

Total 5,360
<“ Based on orüzinal maturitıcs.

Provisions

2015 2014

Ernployee termination beneFıts 634 528
Vacation pay Iiability 275 287
Bonus accrual 257 241
Non-cash Ioans 12 13

Total 1,178 1,069
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27. Provisions (continued)

Employec termination benefits

in accordance with existing social legislation in Turkey. the Bank 15 required to make Iump-sum
payments to employees whose empIoment is tenııinated due to retirement or for reasons other than
resignation or misconduct. Such payrnents are calculated on the basis of 30 days’ pay, maximum of
TL 3,828 at 31 December 2015 (2014: TL 3,438) per year of employment at the rate of pay applicable
at the date of retirement or termination. The principal assumption used in the calcıılation of the total
IiabiIity is that the rnaximum Iiability for each year of senIce wili increase in line with inilation semi
annualiy.

The Iiability k not funded, as there is no funding requirement.

Movements in the defined benefit obhigations in the current period vere as fohlows:

2015 2014

Opening 528 367
Current service cost 72 167
Actuarial (gains)İ hosses 34 -

interest cost 25 19
Beneflts paid (25) (25)
Beneflts not paid - -

Ciosing balancc at period end 634 528

international Accounting Standard No: 19 (“tAS 19”) requires actuariah valuation methods to be
developed to estimate the enterprise’s obligation under defined benefıt plans. The reserve has been
calculated by estimating the present value of future probable obligation of the Bank arising from the
retirement of the ernployees. Accordingiy, the following statistical assurnptions vere used in the
calculation of the following IiabiIity:

2015 2014

Discount rate 10.8% 10.08%
Expected rate of salary/Iimit increase 6.0% 6.0%
Estimated rate of obtaining right for employee termination
indemnity 98.71% 96.32%

28. Other liabilitles

2015 2014

Transitoıy accounts 5.663 4,067
Taxes and funds payable 471 248
VAT payable 3 2
Others 180 125

6,317 4,442
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29. Capital and resenes

2015 2014

Total number ofshares. TL 0.! (in fiili TL), per value 500.000.000 500.000.000

As nt 31 December 2015, the Bank’s historical subscribed and issued share capital is TL 50,000.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014. the composition of shareholders and their respective ownership
percentages are summarised as follows:

2015 2014
Amount Amount

GSD Holding 50.000 100 50.000 100
Adjustmenİ lo share capitaF” 2,686 2,713

52,686 52,713

Adjuslment to share capital includes the reslalemenl effecl of share capital unlu 3! December
2005 and actuarial gain/loss effect.

Legal reserves

The legal reserves consist of first and second legal reserves in accordance with the Turkish
Commercial Code. The first legal reserve is appropriated out of the statutoıy profits al the rate of 5%,
until the total reserve reaclıes a maxirnum of 20% of the entity’s share capital. The second legal
reserve 15 appropriated at the rate of 10% of ali distributions in excess of 5% of the entity’s share
capital. The first and second legal reserves are not available for distribution unless they exceed 50%
of the share capital, but may be used to absorb losses in the event that the general reserve is
exhausted.

Dividends paid and proposed

The Bank did not declare or pay dividends out of the profits for the year ended 31 December 2015 as
atthe date of preparation ofthese financial stalements.

30. Cash and cash equivalents

Notes 2015 2014

Cash on hand 15 - -

Cash and balances with Central Bank of Turkish
Republic 15 530 13
Placement with other banks 16 1.156 1.299

1,686 1,312

Interest accruals on eash and cash equivalenıs - -

1,686 1,312

The reserve deposits at Central Bank are not available to finance the Bank’s day-to-day operations
and therefore are not part of cash and cash equivalents.
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31. Commitments and contingencies

There is no signiflcant legal proceeding outstanding against the Bank as at 31 December 2015.

in the normal course of business activities. the Bank undertakes various cornnıitmenrs and incıırs
certain contingent Iiabiiities that are not presented in the ünanciat statements ncIuding:

2015 2014

Letters of guarantee 509,095 453,874
Derivative Transactions 299,460 -

Irrevocable commitments 25 24

Total 808,580 453,898

32. Rclatcd partics

Partles are considered lo be related if one party has the abiIiw to control the other pariy or exercise
signiflcant inlluence over the other party in making the financial and operating decisions. The Bank 15
conırolled by GSD Holding. which owns 100% of ordinaıy shares. For the purpose of these financial
ştatements, shareholders of the Bank. GSD Holding. its subsidiaries (GSD Denizcilik Gayrimenkııl
inşaat San. ve Tic. A.Ş., GSD Reklam ve Halkla Ilişkiler Hizmetleri A.Ş., GSD Gayrimenkul Yatırım
ve Geliştirme A.Ş., GSD Faktoring A.Ş.. GSD Eğitim Vakfı, and GSD Plan Proje Etüd A.Ş.) are
refered to as related parties. The related parties mainly consist of slıarelıolders, related companles.
directors and key managenıent personnel.

2015
Current Noöonnl
accounts Other amount

Cash Non-caslı of ban Funds current of derivative
Loans Loans Placements customers Borrowcd assets traasnetions

Dircet / indirecı sharclıoldcrs 13.005 20.993 - 156.701 - - ii .664
Others 596 - - 10 - -

2015
Fees and Other Other

Interest ınterest commission operating operating
Income cıpense income income cıpenses

Direcı / indirecı sharcholdcrs 130 2.187 78 269 2.499
Othcrs 188 22 171 - -

2014
Current Notional
accounts Other amount

Cash Non-cash ofloan Funds curreat ofdcrivative
Loans Lonns Placements customers Borrowed assets transacijons

Dircct / indircct sharcholdcrs 260 40.566 - 4 . - -

Othcrs 688 - 3 - 351 - -
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32. Related parties (continned)

2014
Eces and Other Other

Interest Interest commission operating operating

Income expense income income expdnses

Direci / indireci shareholdcrs 192 53 263 1.911
Others 87 1.265 313

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the executive and non-executive members of Board of
Directors and management received remuneration and fees totalling approximately TL 644 (2014: TL
556) comprising salaries and other short-İerrn beneflis.

33. Subsequent Events

None.
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